
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF NEVADA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

vs.

ROBERT DAVID KAHRE,

Defendant.
_____________________________

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Case No. 2:05-CR-00121 DAE-RJJ

ORDER GRANTING GOVERNMENT’S MOTION TO APPOINT RECEIVER

On October 24, 2011, the Court heard the Government’s Motion to

Appoint Receiver.  Carlos Gonzalez, Assistant U.S. Attorney, appeared at the

hearing on behalf of the Government; Lisa Rasmussen, Esq., appeared at the

hearing on behalf of Defendant Robert David Kahre (“Defendant”).  After

reviewing the motion and the supporting and opposing memoranda, the Court

GRANTS the Government’s Motion to Appoint a Receiver and APPOINTS Robb

Evans & Associates LLC as receiver.

BACKGROUND

 On November 20, 2007, the United States filed a Third Superseding

Indictment (“TSI”) against Defendant, various family members, and other

associates of his business.  (“TSI,” Doc. # 1671.)  Kahre was charged with
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Conspiracy to Defraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 (Count 1); Willfull Failure

to Collect and Pay Over Tax in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7202 (Counts 2–50);

Attempts to Interfere With The Administration of the Internal Revenue Law in

violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7212(a) (Counts 51, 56); Attempts to Evade or Defeat Tax

in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7201 (Counts 52–55); and Wire Fraud in violation of 18

U.S.C. § 1343 (Count 59).  (Id.)

On August 14, 2009, following a 48-day trial, the jury returned a

verdict finding Defendant guilty on Counts 1, 2–50, 51, 52–55, 56 and 59 of the

TSI.  (Docs. ## 2520, 2558.)  On November 17, 2009, Defendant was sentenced to

a term of imprisonment of 190 months and ordered to pay restitution in the amount

of $16,060,104.72 to the Internal Revenue Service and a special assessment in the

amount of $5,700.00.  (Doc. # 2606.)  A Judgment to that effect was entered on

December 3, 2009.  (Doc. # 2615.)

On November 19, 2009, Defendant filed a Notice of Appeal of his

conviction and sentence.  (Doc. # 2602.)  That appeal is still pending.

On February 23, 2011, the Government filed the instant Motion to

Appoint Receiver.  (“Mot.,” Doc. # 2779.)  On March 15, 2011, Defendant filed an

Opposition.  (“Opp’n.,” Doc. # 2786.)  On April 25, 2011, the Government filed a
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Reply.  (“Reply,” Doc. # 2800.)  A hearing on the Motion was held on October 24,

2011.  (Doc. # 2808.)

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The Government may enforce criminal restitution judgments using the

practices and procedures available for the enforcement of a civil judgment under

Federal law.  See 18 U.S.C. § 3613(a) (“The United States may enforce a judgment

imposing a fine in accordance with the practices and procedures for the

enforcement of a civil judgment under Federal law or State law.”); id. § 3613(f)

(“all provisions of this section are available to the United States for the

enforcement of an order of restitution”).  One of the procedures available for

enforcing civil judgments is the appointment of a receiver pursuant to Federal Rule

of Civil Procedure 66, which provides:

These rules govern an action in which the appointment of a receiver is
sought or a receiver sues or is sued.  But the practice in administering
an estate by a receiver or a similar court-appointed officer must accord
with the historical practice in federal courts or with a local rule.  An
action in which a receiver has been appointed may be dismissed only
by court order.

Fed. R. Civ. P. 66. 

“Under federal law, appointing a receiver is an extraordinary equitable

remedy, which should be applied with caution.”  Canada Life Assurance Co. v.
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LaPeter, 563 F.3d 837, 844 (9th Cir. 2009) (internal quotation and citation

omitted).  A receiver will be appointed when “the most speedy and perfect

administration of justice and the rights of the parties interested in the property will

be best secured by such action.”  View Crest Garden Apartments, Inc. v. United

States, 281 F.2d 844, 849 (9th Cir. 1960), cert. denied, 364 U.S. 902 (1960). 

However, “there is ‘no precise formula for determining when a

receiver may be appointed.’” Canada Life, 563 F.3d at 844 (quoting Aviation

Supply Corp. v. R.S.B.I. Aerospace, Inc., 999 F.2d 314, 316 (8th Cir. 1993).  The

district court has broad discretion in deciding whether to appoint a receiver.  Id. at

845.  The court may consider a host of relevant factors, with no single factor being

dispositive.  Id.  Some of the relevant factors include the following: “(1) whether

[the party] seeking the appointment has a valid claim; (2) whether there is

fraudulent conduct or the probability of fraudulent conduct, by the defendant; (3)

whether the property is in imminent danger of being lost, concealed, injured,

diminished in value, or squandered; (4) whether legal remedies are inadequate; (5)

whether the harm to plaintiff by denial of the appointment would outweigh injury

to the party opposing appointment; (6) the plaintiff’s probable success in the action

and the possibility of irreparable injury to plaintiff’s interest in the property; and,

(7) whether [the] plaintiff’s interests sought to be protected will in fact be
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well-served by receivership.”  Id. at 844 (internal quotations and citations omitted). 

DISCUSSION

I. Appointment of Receiver

The Government moves to appoint a receiver to aid in the

enforcement of the Judgment entered against Defendant.  In support of its Motion,

the Government asserts that the appointment of a receiver is necessary to preserve

Defendant’s assets and prevent the fraudulent transfer of Defendant’s properties to

others.  The Government is informed and believes that Defendant’s assets and

properties include the following:

(1) 62436 Mink Lane, Summerville, OR (“Oregon Property”)

(2) 590 Sugar leo Street, George, UT (“Utah Property”)

(3) 1525 Bledsoe Lane, Las Vegas, NV (“Nevada Property”)

(4) Gold & Silver Coins valued at $27,417.60

However, Defendant maintains that the Oregon and Utah Properties do not belong

to him, that he owns only half of the Nevada Property, and that the gold and silver

coins no longer exist.  Defendant also contends that the appointment of a receiver:

(1) would violate the double jeopardy clause; (2) is prohibited by virtue of the 
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pending appeal; and (3) would consume funds that would otherwise go to

Defendant’s creditors.1  This Court disagrees for the reasons that follow.

A. Double Jeopardy Clause

Defendant objects to the appointment of a receiver on the ground that

“[t]he government[’]s request for ‘further prosecution’ under the guise of a

receiver for finding[s] not made during the trial is a violation of the double

jeopardy clause.”  (Opp’n at 5.)  According to Defendant, the Government cannot

now seek a receivership since it is not a remedy that was accorded to it at trial. 

(Id.)  However, Defendant cites no authority to support this proposition, nor is this

Court aware of any.

Indeed, federal statutes make clear that the appointment of a receiver

is an equitable remedy available to the United States to aid in the enforcement of a

restitution order.  See 18 U.S.C. § 3613(a) (“The United States may enforce a

judgment imposing a fine in accordance with the practices and procedures for the

enforcement of a civil judgment under Federal law or State law.”); id. § 3613(f)
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(“all provisions of this section are available to the United States for the

enforcement of an order of restitution”); and Fed. R. Civ.  P. 66 (authorizing

federal courts to appoint receivers).  Courts routinely appoint a receiver following

entry of judgment.  See Office Depot Inc. v. Zuccarini, 596 F.3d 696, 700–701 (9th

Cir. 2010); United States v. Alisal Water Corp., 326 F. Supp. 2d 1010, 1029 (N.D.

Cal. 2002); cf. Solis v. Matheson, 563 F.3d 425, 438 (9th Cir. 2009)

(acknowledging that the district court had the authority to appoint a receiver

despite the fact that the complaint did not mention or request receivership as a form

of relief).

Moreover, to the extent that Defendant argues that the appointment of

a receiver requires findings that should have been made by the jury at trial, that

argument lacks merit.  The appointment of a receiver is an equitable remedy that

does not implicate a constitutional right to a jury trial.  See 9 Charles Alan Wright

et al., Federal Practice & Procedure § 2316 (3d ed. 2011) (citing Schaefer v.

Gunzburg, 246 F.2d 11, 17 (9th Cir. 1957), cert. denied, 355 U.S. 831 (1957)).

B. Pending Appeal

Defendant also objects to the appointment of a receiver on the ground

that it is prohibited in light of Defendant’s pending appeal before the Ninth Circuit. 

However, district courts may appoint a receiver while an appeal is pending where
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the relevant factors otherwise warrant the appointment.  See United States v.

Queen’s Court Apartments, Inc. 288 F.2d 253 (9th Cir. 1961) (“From a

consideration of the uncontradicted facts set forth in the affidavits . . . , and the

prospect of further delay during appeal, it appears to us that the appointment of a

receiver to collect the rents, issues and profits pending the disposition of the appeal

in this court is proper.”).  Therefore, contrary to Defendant’s contention, this Court

is not prohibited from appointing a receiver on account of Defendant’s pending

appeal.

C. Canada Life Factors

Upon consideration of the Canada Life factors set forth above, the

Court concludes that a receiver should be appointed in this case.  See Canada Life,

563 F.3d at 844. 

First, the validity of the Government’s claim is self-evident since

Judgment has already been entered against Defendant.  Pursuant to that Judgment,

Defendant is ordered to pay restitution in the amount of $16,060,104.72 and a

special assessment in the amount of $5,700.  This factor therefore clearly favors

appointment.  

Second, there is no question that fraudulent conduct has occurred

here.  See Solis v. Matheson, 563 F.3d 425, 438 (9th Cir. 2009) (stating that a
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finding “that [defendants] previously engaged in fraud” is a relevant factor in

determining whether to appoint a receiver) (emphasis added).  Indeed, the very

crimes for which Defendant was convicted and ordered to pay restitution involve

defrauding or attempting to defraud the Government.  By way of single example,

pursuant to Count 56 of the TSI, Defendant was charged and convicted of

attempting to interfere with the administration of the internal revenue law by

“concealing and attempting to conceal from the [IRS], the nature and extent of

defendant Robert D. Kahre’s assets, and the location thereof by placing funds and

property in the names of nominees.”  (TSI ¶ 27.)  This is precisely the type of

fraudulent conduct that warrants the application of a receiver.  Accordingly, this

factor plainly favors appointment.

Moreover, the Court finds unpersuasive Defendant’s contention that

the Utah and Oregon properties were not fraudulently transferred because those

properties were never titled to Defendant and were gifted to his wife and mother,

who are the record owners of those properties.  The evidence adduced at trial

showed that defendant was concealing his assets from the IRS by placing legal title

to his properties in the names of others.  (See e.g., Reply Exs. B–E.) Therefore, the

fact that title to the Utah and Oregon properties is held in the name 
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of someone other than Defendant does not demonstrate the absence of fraudulent

conduct.

Third, Defendant’s properties and assets are in imminent danger of

being lost because the record owners may sell or otherwise transfer properties that,

in effect, belong to Defendant.  This concern is particularly salient in light of

Defendant’s history of concealing assets from the Government.  Additionally, to

the extent that some of the properties are unoccupied or abandoned, such properties

will be squandered or diminish in value the longer they remain in disrepair.2  This

factor thus favors appointment. 

Fourth, while the Government may have legal remedies to secure

Defendant’s assets, the appointment of a receiver is the most effective and efficient

way to enforce the Judgment against Defendant.  Defendant’s purported assets are

spread across several states.  And since those assets appear to be insufficient to

satisfy the claims of all of Defendant’s creditors, multiple claimants will seek

recovery from the same assets.  Under these circumstances, the Court finds that the

appointment of a receiver will best secure “the most speedy and perfect

administration of justice and the rights of the parties interested in the property.” 
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View Crest, 281 F.2d at 849.  Nevertheless, since this factor does not clearly weigh

in favor of either party, the Court considers it to be neutral. 

Fifth, the potential harm to the Government if a receiver is not

appointed substantially outweighs any potential harm to Defendant if one is

appointed.  As discussed above, if a receiver is not appointed to preserve

Defendant’s assets for his creditors, the record owners of Defendant’s properties

may sell or transfer those properties to others in an effort to prevent Defendant’s

creditors from executing on them. This fraudulent conduct would clearly

compromise the Government’s efforts to recover on the Judgment.  Any potential

harm to the Defendant if a receiver is appointed is minimal by comparison. 

Therefore, this factor favors appointment. 

Defendant argues that the appointment of a receiver will not serve the

interest of his creditors because it will diminish or eliminate the amount available

for recovery.  (Opp’n at 2, 4–5, 9.)  However, Defendant’s principal creditor, the

United States, is the very party seeking the appointment of a receiver.  (See Opp’n

at 6 (acknowledging that the Government’s claim constitutes 98.3% of all the

claims against Defendant).)  It thus stands to reason that the interest of Defendant’s

principal creditor is best served by the appointment of a receiver. 
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Sixth, it is undisputed that the Government has already succeeded in

this action and has a clear interest in Defendant’s properties.  Additionally, as just

discussed, there is a possibility that the Government’s interest in those properties

would be irreparably injured if the record owners should sell or transfer

Defendant’s properties.  This factor therefore favors appointment.  

Lastly, the Government’s interest in preventing the fraudulent transfer

of Defendant’s properties and preserving those properties for Defendant’s creditors

would be well-served by a receivership. Pursuant to the terms set forth in the

Order Appointing Receiver, the receiver will be authorized to identify the assets

belonging to Defendant and, subject to Court approval, take exclusive custody,

control, and/or possession of those assets and perform all acts necessary and

advisable to preserve those assets for Defendant’s creditors.  Accordingly, this

factor favors appointment.  

In sum, the Court finds that the factors set forth in the Canada Life

case overwhelmingly favor the appointment of a receiver here.  A receiver will

serve to preserve Defendant’s assets for his creditors and prevent the fraudulent

transfer of Defendant’s properties.  Accordingly, the Court concludes that a

receiver should be appointed for purposes of enforcing the restitution Judgment

entered against Defendant. 
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The Government has proposed that the Court appoint Robb Evans &

Associates LLC (“Robb Evans”) as receiver.  In light of Robb Evans’ substantial

experience acting as receiver in cases involving claims by the United States and

assets located in multiple jurisdictions, the Court finds that it is well-qualified to

serve as receiver in this case.  Therefore, pursuant to the terms set forth in the

Order Appointing Receiver, attached as Exhibit A to this Order, the Court hereby

appoints Robb Evans as receiver in this matter. 

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the Court GRANTS the Government’s

Motion to Appoint Receiver and APPOINTS Robb Evans & Associates LLC as

receiver.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED:  Honolulu, Hawaii, December 14, 2011.

_____________________________
DAVID ALAN EZRA
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

United States v. Kahre, CR No. 2:05-0121 DAE-RJJ; ORDER GRANTING
GOVERNMENT’S MOTION TO APPOINT RECEIVER
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EXHIBIT “A”
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEVADA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)

Plaintiff, )  
)

v. )           Case No. 2:05-CR-00121-DAE-RJJ-1
)

ROBERT DAVID KAHRE )
)

Defendants. )
)

ORDER APPOINTING RECEIVER

Good cause for the appointment of a Receiver in this matter having been shown by

plaintiff the United States,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

Robb Evans & Associates LLC is appointed Equity Receiver ("Receiver") for all assets

of defendants Robert David Kahre (the "Receivership Defendant"), with the full power of an

equity receiver.  "Assets"  means all legal and equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, any

real or personal property, including, without limitation, chattels, goods, instruments, equipment,

fixtures, general intangibles, leasehold interests, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks,

notes, accounts, credits, contract rights, receivables, shares of stock, interests in any trust, and

cash, wherever such Assets are located, whether in the United States or abroad, and shall include

existing Assets and Assets acquired after the date of entry of this Order. 
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"Documents" is synonymous in meaning and equal in scope to the usage of the term in

Rule 34(a) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and includes, without limitation, writings,

drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, audio and video recordings, accounting data, FTP Logs,

Server Access Logs, USENET Newsgroup postings, World Wide Web pages, books, written or

printed records, handwritten notes, telephone logs, receipt books, ledgers, personal and business

canceled checks and check registers, bank statements, appointment books, computer records, and

any other data compilations from which information can be obtained and translated.  Drafts or

non-identical copies are separate Documents within the meaning of the term.  The Receiver shall

be the agent of this Court and solely the agent of this Court in acting as Receiver under this

Order.  The Receiver shall be accountable directly to this Court.  The Receiver shall comply with

all Local Rules of this Court governing receivers.

RECEIVERSHIP DUTIES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

1. The Receiver shall conduct an investigation for the purpose of identifying and locating

all Assets and Documents of, or in possession, custody, or under the control of, the Receivership

Defendant, wherever situated.

2. Upon identification of all Assets and Documents of, or in possession, custody, or under

the control of, the Receivership Defendant, the Receiver shall file a request with the Court to

have said Assets and Documents apply toward the Restitution Judgment entered against the

Receivership Defendant in United States v. Robert David Kahre, Case No. 2:05-

CR-00121-DAE-RJJ-1.
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3. Upon a determination by the Court that the specified Assets and Documents: (1) belong

to, are in possession, custody, or under the control of, the Receivership Defendant, and (2) shall

apply toward the Restitution Judgment entered against the Receivership Defendant, the Receiver

shall be directed and authorized to accomplish the following with respect to those Assets and

Documents:

a. Take exclusive custody, control and possession of all said Assets and Documents,

wherever situated.  The Receiver shall have full power to divert mail and to sue

for, collect, receive, take in possession, hold, and manage all Assets and

Documents of the Receivership Defendant and other persons or entities whose

interests are now held by or under the direction, possession, custody, or control of

the Receivership Defendant.  The Receiver may employ the assistance of law

enforcement officers as the Receiver deems necessary to implement the

provisions of this Order.  The Receiver may take all steps necessary to secure

existing business premises of the Receivership Defendant.  Such steps may

include, but are not limited to, securing the locations by changing the locks and

disconnecting any computer modems or other means of access to the computer or

other records maintained at the locations;

b. Conserve, hold, and manage all receivership Assets, and perform all acts

necessary or advisable to preserve the value of those Assets, in order to prevent

any irreparable loss, damage, or injury to consumers or to creditors of the

Receivership Defendant, including, but not limited to, obtaining an accounting of

the Assets and preventing transfer, withdrawal, or misapplication of Assets, and
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including the authority to liquidate all Assets and close out any open securities or

commodity futures positions of the Receivership Defendant;

c. Enter into contracts, purchase insurance and borrow funds as advisable or

necessary;

d. Manage and administer existing business of the Receivership Defendant until

further order of this Court by performing all incidental acts that the Receiver

deems to be advisable or necessary, which includes retaining, hiring, or

dismissing any employees, independent contractors, or agents. The Receiver may

take any action and incur the risks and obligations ordinarily incurred by owners,

managers, and operators of similar business properties, including without

limitation, executing such documents and instruments on behalf of the

receivership estate that are necessary and appropriate for the management of the

Receivership Property.  No risk or obligation incurred by such actions, however,

shall be the personal risk or obligation of the Receiver but a risk or obligation of

the receivership estate, except for gross negligence or other culpable conduct;

e. Choose, engage, and employ attorneys, accountants, appraisers, and other

independent contractors and technical specialists, as the Receiver deems advisable

or necessary in the performance of duties and responsibilities under the authority

granted by this Order;

f. Make payments and disbursements from the receivership estate that are necessary

or advisable for carrying out the directions of, or exercising the authority granted

by, this Order.  The Receiver shall apply to the Court for prior approval of any
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payment of any debt or obligation incurred by the Receivership Defendant prior

to the date of entry of this Order, except payments that the Receiver deems

necessary or advisable to secure Assets of the Receivership Defendant, such as

rental payments;

g. Institute, compromise, adjust, appear in, intervene in, or become party to such

actions or proceedings in state, federal or foreign courts that the Receiver deems

necessary and advisable to preserve or recover the Assets of the Receivership

Defendant or that the Receiver deems necessary and advisable to carry out the

Receiver's mandate under this Order;

h. Defend, compromise, adjust, or otherwise dispose of any or all actions or

proceedings instituted in the past or in the future against the Receiver in his role

as Receiver, or against the Receivership Defendant that the Receiver deems

necessary and advisable to preserve the Assets of the Receivership Defendant or

that the Receiver deems necessary and advisable to carry out the Receiver's

mandate under this Order;

i. Issue subpoenas to obtain Documents and records pertaining to the receivership,

and conduct discovery in this action on behalf of the receivership estate;

j. Open one or more bank accounts as designated depositories for funds of the

Receivership Defendant.  The Receiver shall deposit all funds of the Receivership

Defendant in such a designated account and shall make all payments and

disbursements from the receivership estate from such an account;
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k. Maintain accurate records of all receipts and expenditures that he makes as

Receiver;

l. Cooperate with reasonable requests for information or assistance from any state or

federal law enforcement agency; and

m. File reports with the Court on a timely and reasonable basis.

STAY OF ACTIONS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

1. Except by leave of this Court, during pendency of the receivership ordered herein, the

Receivership Defendant and all other persons and entities be and hereby are stayed from taking

any action to establish or enforce any claim, right, or interest for, against, on behalf of, in, or in

the name of, the Receivership Defendant, any of their subsidiaries, affiliates, partnerships,

Assets, Documents, or the Receiver or the Receiver's duly authorized agents acting in their

capacities as such, including, but not limited to, the following actions:

a. Commencing, prosecuting, continuing, entering, or enforcing any suit or

proceeding, except that such actions may be filed to toll any applicable statute of

limitations;

b. Accelerating the due date of any obligation or claimed obligation; filing,

perfecting or enforcing any lien; taking or attempting to take possession, custody,

or control of any Asset; attempting to foreclose, forfeit, alter, or terminate any

interest in any Asset, whether such acts are part of a judicial proceeding, are acts

of self-help, or otherwise, or setoff of any debt owing to the Receivership
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Defendant that arose before the date of this Order against any claim against the

Receivership Defendant;

c. Executing, issuing, serving, or causing the execution, issuance or service of, any

legal process, including, but not limited to, attachments, garnishments, subpoenas,

writs of replevin, writs of execution, or any other form of process whether

specified in this Order or not; or

d. Doing any act or thing whatsoever to interfere with the Receiver taking custody,

control, possession, or management of the Assets or Documents subject to this

receivership, or to harass or interfere with the Receiver in any way, or to interfere

in any manner with the exclusive jurisdiction of this Court over the Assets or

Documents of the Receivership Defendant.

2. This Order does not stay:

a. The commencement or continuation of a criminal action or proceeding;

b. The commencement or continuation of an action or proceeding by a governmental

unit to enforce such governmental unit's police or regulatory power; or

c. The enforcement of a judgment, other than a money judgment, obtained in an

action or proceeding by a governmental unit to enforce such governmental unit's

police or regulatory power.

3. Except as otherwise provided in this Order, all persons and entities in need of

documentation from the Receiver shall in all instances first attempt to secure such information

by submitting a formal written request to the Receiver, and, if such request has not been

Case 2:05-cr-00121-DAE -RJJ   Document 2809    Filed 12/14/11   Page 21 of 23



22

responded to within thirty (30) days of receipt by the Receiver, any such person or entity may

thereafter seek an Order of this Court with regard to the relief requested.

COMPENSATION OF RECEIVER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

The Receiver and all personnel hired by the Receiver as herein authorized, including

counsel to the Receiver and accountants, are entitled to reasonable compensation for the

performance of duties pursuant to this Order and for the cost of actual out-of-pocket expenses

incurred by them, from the Assets now held by or in the possession, custody, or control of, or

which may be received by, the Receivership Defendants.   

The Receiver shall file with the Court and serve on the parties periodic requests for the

payment of such reasonable compensation, with the first such request filed no more than sixty

(60) days after the date of this Order.  The Receiver shall not increase the hourly rates used as

the bases for such fee applications without prior approval of the Court.

SERVICE OF THIS ORDER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

Copies of this Order may be distributed by U.S. first class mail, overnight delivery,

facsimile, electronic mail, or personally, by agents or employees of the Receiver, by any law

enforcement agency, or by private process server, upon any Person, Financial Institution, or

other entity that may have possession or control of any property, property right, Documents, or

Assets of Defendant, or that may be subject to any provision of this Order.  Service upon any
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branch or office of any Financial Institution or entity shall effect service upon the entire financial

institution or entity.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

DATED: Honolulu, Hawaii, December 14, 2011.

_____________________________
DAVID ALAN EZRA
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

United States v. Kahre, CR No. 2:05-0121 DAE-RJJ; ORDER APPOINTING RECEIVER
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